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TEA DOCKET NO. 010-SE-0915 
 

STUDENT bnf PARENT AND PARENT   § BEFORE A SPECIAL EDUCATION  
Petitioner/Cross-Respondent  §  

      §  
v.      § HEARING OFFICER FOR 
                 §  
EDINBURG CONSOLIDATED  §  
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT §  

Respondent/Cross-Petitioner         § THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 

FINAL DECISION OF THE HEARING OFFICER NUNC PRO TUNC 
 

This Final Decision is reissued pursuant to T.R.C.P., Rule 306a(6) to correct a clerical error 
in the docket number of the case, as set forth in the style of the case. 
 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE  
 

Petitioner/Cross-Respondent, Student *** and Student’s next friends and parents, ***  and 
*** (hereinafter referred to collectively as Petitioner and individually as Student or Parent), 
brings this action against Respondent

1. Whether Respondent improperly changed Student’s placement at the start of the 
2015-2016 school year by removing Student from the general education 
environment and placing Student in a special education environment without the 
decision of an ARD committee and without parental consent? 

2. Whether Student’s placement 
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6. Whether the District violated IDEA by failing to provide Student with proper 
supports so that Student could be successful in the general education environment 
at the start of the 2015-2016 school year? 

Relief Requested By Petitioner 

1. District will fully evaluate Student in all areas of suspected disability (this item is 
agreed to by both parties); 

2. Following completion of new evaluation, District, in collaboration with Parents, 
will develop an appropriate IEP that addresses all areas of Student need (agreed to 
by both parties); 

3. Pursuant to IDEA’s stay put provision, District will place Student in the general 
education setting with appropriate supports (including a dedicated aide) during the 
evaluation process;  

4. District will allow parent reasonable access to observe child in classroom setting;  

5. District will provide compensatory services to the Student for failure to provide OT 
services. 

Issue Raised By Respondent 

Whether it is appropriate for the Hearing Officer to override the lack of parental 
consent to re-evaluate Student, compel a full and individual re-evaluation of 
Student, and compel Student’s parents’ full cooperation in providing the 
information necessary for the District to properly re-evaluate Student.   

Relief Requested By Respondent 

An order overriding the lack of parental consent and compelling Student’s parents 
to consent to and fully cooperate with Respondent’s efforts to evaluate Student.  

PROCEDURAL HISTORY  

Tomas Ramirez III, Attorney at Law, represents Petitioner. Nick Maddox, Attorney at Law, 
along with his firm, O’Hanlon, McCollom & Demerath, represent Respondent in this 
proceeding.  

Petitioner filed the instant request for due process on September 17, 2015.  Respondent 
filed its cross action to override lack of parental consent to evaluate Student on October 8, 
2015. 

The parties held a resolution session on October 2, 2015, but were not able to resolve the 
issues in dispute. 

I conducted a pre-hearing conference and issued an Order Following Pre-Hearing 
Conference on October 9, 2015 delineating the issues and relief sought by the parties, 
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granting Respondent’s Plea To The Jurisdiction and dismissing all claims arising outside 
of the IDEA, and issuing a scheduling order to complete discovery and for the due process 
hearing. 

The due process hearing took place on November 5, 2015 at the administrative offices of 
the District.  At the conclusion of the due process hearing, by joint request of the parties, I 
granted leave to file closing briefs and entered an Order Granting Joint Request To Extend 
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7).  It is unclear whether this IEP was ever presented at an ARDC or actually 
agreed to by the Parent.  (JX 13, Recording of September ***, 2015 ARDC).   

8. 
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15. The Diagnostician communicated the decision to both the campus principal and 
the Parent. (T. 111, 117).  Parent was pleased because Student would be in a 
classroom with typically developing peers. (T. 117).   

16. District personnel involved in making the decision about where to educate 
Student when school began had never worked with Student and did not know 
Student.  (T. 120, 162).  

17. District personnel viewed Student’s placement in general education with 
special education supports as a temporary diagnostic placement to allow them 
to observe Student and collect additional data (T. 139, 144, 228) in advance of 
the ARDC meeting, but this was not communicated to Parent orally or in 
writing. (T. 74-75, 203, 226, 250).  Instead, Parent’s understanding was that 
District personnel believed the general education environment would be best 
for Student and that Student would be placed there with supports. (T. 73-75).   

18. Parent’s understanding was reinforced by the Prior Written Notice (PWN) dated 
August ***, 2015 sent in connection with the ARDC meeting planned for 
September ***, 2015 to devise an IEP and placement for Student pending 
completion of new evaluation.  (T. 112-116).  The PWN indicated Student’s 
proposed placement to be “mainstream setting, resource supports, and self-help 
skills.”  (JX 8).   

19. Student began school on ***, August ***, 2015 in the general education *** 
classroom with resource and self-help special education support. (T. 166, 168). 
The general education classroom had one teacher and one general education 
aide to assist with all of the students.  (T. 118-119). Student did not know either 
the teacher or the aide, which posed a challenge given Student’s difficulties 
with transition typical of students with autism.  Neither the teacher nor the aide 
had experience or knowledge concerning students with autism. (T. 164, 168-
169). 

20. During the first week of school, the Diagnostician observed Student two times 
and the Principal observed Student every day.  Based on their observations, both 
testified that Student exhibited challenging behaviors, including noncompliance 
with teacher directives, running around the classroom, destruction of school 
property, unwanted touching of other students, and behaviors of ***, ***, and 
retreating into Student’s “own world.”  (T. 140-141, 167-168).  After the third 
day of school, the Principal directed the aide to work solely or mostly with 
Student due to the significant needs Student was exhibiting. (T. 120, 204-205).   

21. Parent also had concerns and anticipated that Student would require time to 
adjust to the new and unfamiliar setting.   As such, Parent requested a “shadow,” 
offered to provide a “shadow” from an ABA-provider Student had worked with, 
and asked to observe the classroom (himself or personnel from ***) to make 
suggestions about how to help Student adjust.  The District declined all 
requests/offers. (T. 77-79). 
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22. By ***
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evaluations, and prior instructional setting. The ARDC also sought consent for 
the re-evaluation. (JX9).  Parents disagreed with the placement 
recommendation, declined to provide consent, and the ARDC recessed until 
September ***, 2015.   

30. The ARDC met again on September ***, 2015. On September ***, 2015, 
Parent provided written consent for the District to re-evaluate Student.  
Student’s IEP was developed based on present levels of performance and the 
District continued to recommend the self-contained placement with *** per day 
in general education.  Parent continued to disagree. 

31. The District’s initial offer of FAPE (IEP and placement developed at the 
September ***, 2015 ARDC) to Parent was temporary pending completion of 
reevaluation of Student and was appropriate based on the limited data available 
to ECISD at the time of the ARDC meeting.   

32. The evidence does not support the conclusion that Student ultimately requires 
a self-contained classroom as Student’s least restrictive environment; rather, the 
evidence indicates that this determination must be made following completion 
of Student’s reevaluation.   

33. Parent subsequently revoked consent to re-evaluate (PX 3-8) and filed the 
instant action on September 17, 2015.  

34. The parties stipulate and agree that an FIE needs to be completed by the District 
in order to develop an IEP and determine the appropriate placement based on 
Student’s currents needs. (T. 48-49).  The District began reevaluation and 
completion of a full FIE of Student immediately upon Student’s enrollment, but 
was unable to complete the reevaluation due to withdrawal of parental consent.  
(T. 147-149). 

DISCUSSION 

Student enrolled in *** in ECISD in August 2015 for 2015-2016 school year. Although 
Student received IDEA services in the District for two years previously (2012-2013 and 
2013-2014 at ages *** and ***), Student has not received services since May 2014.  The 
last IEP that was actually implemented for Student was the April 2013 IEP, which governed 
Student’s services during the 2013-2014 school year.  The April 2014 IEP was not 
implemented, and may not have been agreed to by the parents, because Student did not 
attend ECISD during the 2014-2015 school year.  

This litigation concerns issues arising out of Student’s return to the District related to 
Student’s initial placement (Petitioner Issues 1, 2, and 6 as set forth herein), evaluation 
(Petitioner Issue 5, Respondent Issue 1), related services (Petitioner Issue 4), and 
collaboration between the parties (Petitioner Issue 3).    
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Student did not have an IEP in effect at that time; indeed, Student’s last implemented IEP 
was from 2013 and Student’s last proposed IEP from 2014.  The District appropriately 
recognized that it did not have the necessary information to develop an appropriate IEP or 
placement for Student, as it did not have current assessment, present levels of achievement 
and performance, or the other information required by 34 C.F.R. § 300.320.  The District 
immediately began the process of evaluating Student in order to develop an appropriate 
IEP and placement and sou
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the record to demonstrate that this procedural violation impeded Student’s right to a FAPE 
or caused a deprivation of educational benefits.  34 C.F.R. § 300.513(2). The placement 
was made for *** prior to the ARDC, insufficient time to result in educational deprivation 
to Student.  Further, as discussed above, the placement was appropriate based on available 
data and did not violate the stay-put provision of IDEA.   

Petitioner also argues that making this placement decision without Parental input, along 
with denying Parent the right to observe Student in Student’s classroom setting2 , 
significantly impeded Parent’s opportunity to participate in the decision making process 
regarding the provision of FAPE to Student in violation of 34 C.F.R. § 300.513(2)(ii).   

IDEA guarantees Parents the right to fully and effectively participate in the IEP process 
and ensures those rights through provisions requiring notice of ARDC meetings and 
genuine consideration of parent input when making decisions. 34 C.F.R. § 300.321, 
300.322.  The evidence indicates that Parent was provided the opportunity to participate 
fully in the decision-making process at the ARDC meetings on September *** and ***, 
2015.  The recordings of the ARDC meetings reflect substantial discussion between the 
parties and detailed sharing of viewpoints by both school personnel and Parent about the 
provision of FAPE to Student, including Parent’s request to observe Student in the 
classroom.  The first ARDC on September *** lasted for approximately 40 minutes and 
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In summary, I find no violation for the District’s failure to provide OT services prior to the 
date of Student’s enrollment at ECISD in August 2015.  Petitioner’s request for 
compensatory OT services is hereby 
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SYNOPSIS 

Issue: Whether Respondent improperly changed Student’s placement at the start of the 
2015-2016 school year by removing Student from the general education environment and 
placing Student in a special education environment without the decision of an ARD 
committee and without parental consent? 

Held:  For the District. Respondent’s placement of Student in the special education 
classroom *** prior to the ARDC meeting did not resulJ
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